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Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration, DOT § 190.209 

in § 190.227 and advise the Regional Di-

rector of the payment. The payment 

authorizes the Associate Administrator 

to make a finding of violation and to 

issue a final order under § 190.213; 

(2) If the respondent is not contesting 

an allegation of probable violation but 

wishes to submit a written expla-

nation, information, or other materials 

the respondent believes may warrant 

mitigation or elimination of the pro-

posed civil penalty, the respondent 

may submit such materials. This au-

thorizes the Associate Administrator 

to make a finding of violation and to 

issue a final order under § 190.213; 

(3) If the respondent is contesting one 

or more allegations of probable viola-

tion but is not requesting a hearing 

under § 190.211, the respondent may sub-

mit a written response in answer to the 

allegations; or 

(4) The respondent may request a 

hearing under § 190.211. 

(b) When the notice contains a pro-

posed compliance order— 

(1) If the respondent is not contesting 

an allegation of probable violation, 

agree to the proposed compliance 

order. This authorizes the Associate 

Administrator to make a finding of 

violation and to issue a final order 

under § 190.213; 

(2) Request the execution of a con-

sent order under § 190.219; 

(3) If the respondent is contesting one 

or more of the allegations of probable 

violation or compliance terms, but is 

not requesting a hearing under § 190.211, 

the respondent may object to the pro-

posed compliance order and submit 

written explanations, information, or 

other materials in answer to the alle-

gations in the notice of probable viola-

tion; or 

(4) The respondent may request a 

hearing under § 190.211. 

(c) Before or after responding in ac-

cordance with paragraph (a) of this sec-

tion or, when applicable paragraph (b) 

of this section, the respondent may re-

quest a copy of the violation report 

from the Regional Director as set forth 

in § 190.209. The Regional Director will 

provide the violation report to the re-

spondent within five business days of 

receiving a request. 

(d) Failure to respond in accordance 

with paragraph (a) of this section or, 

when applicable paragraph (b) of this 

section, constitutes a waiver of the 

right to contest the allegations in the 

notice of probable violation and au-

thorizes the Associate Administrator, 

without further notice to the respond-

ent, to find the facts as alleged in the 

notice of probable violation and to 

issue a final order under § 190.213. 

(e) All materials submitted by opera-

tors in response to enforcement actions 

may be placed on publicly accessible 

Web sites. A respondent seeking con-

fidential treatment under 5 U.S.C. 

552(b) for any portion of its responsive 

materials must provide a second copy 

of such materials along with the com-

plete original document. A respondent 

may redact the portions it believes 

qualify for confidential treatment in 

the second copy but must provide a 

written explanation for each redaction. 

[78 FR 58910, Sept. 25, 2013] 

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 78 FR 58910, 

Sept. 25, 2013, § 190.208 was added, effective 

Oct. 25, 2013. 

§ 190.209 Response options. 
Within 30 days of receipt of a notice 

of probable violation, the respondent 

shall respond to the Regional Director 

who issued the notice in the following 

way: 

(a) When the notice contains a pro-

posed civil penalty— 

(1) Pay the proposed civil penalty as 

provided in § 190.227 and close the case 

with prejudice to the respondent; 

(2) Submit written explanations, in-

formation or other materials in answer 

to the allegations or in mitigation of 

the proposed civil penalty; or 

(3) Request a hearing under § 190.211. 

(b) When the notice contains a pro-

posed compliance order— 

(1) Agree to the proposed compliance 

order; 

(2) Request the execution of a con-

sent order under § 190.219; 

(3) Object to the proposed compliance 

order and submit written explanations, 

information or other materials in an-

swer to the allegations in the notice of 

probable violation; or 

(4) Request a hearing under § 190.211. 

(c) Failure of the respondent to re-

spond in accordance with paragraph (a) 

of this section or, when applicable, 
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49 CFR Ch. I (10–1–13 Edition) § 190.210 

paragraph (c) of this section, con-

stitutes a waiver of the right to con-

test the allegations in the notice of 

probable violation and authorizes the 

Associate Administrator, OPS, without 

further notice to the respondent, to 

find facts to be as alleged in the notice 

of probable violation and to issue a 

final order under § 190.213. 

(d) All materials submitted by opera-

tors in response to enforcement actions 

may be placed on publicly accessible 

Web sites. A Respondent that seeks 

confidential treatment under 5 U.S.C. 

552(b) for any portion of its responsive 

materials must provide a second copy 

of such materials along with the com-

plete original document. A Respondent 

may redact the portions it believes 

qualify for confidential treatment in 

the second copy but must provide an 

explanation for each redaction. 

[45 FR 20413, Mar. 27, 1980, as amended by 

Amdt. 190–1, 53 FR 1635, Jan. 21, 1988; Amdt. 

190–6, 61 FR 18513, Apr. 26, 1996; Amdt. 190–7, 

61 FR 27792, June 3, 1996; Amdt. 190–7, 63 FR 

7722, Feb. 17, 1998; 73 FR 16567, Mar. 28, 2008] 

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 78 FR 58910, 

Sept. 25, 2013, § 190.209 was revised, effective 

Sept. 25, 2013. For the convenience of the 

user, the revised text is set forth as follows: 

§ 190.209 Case file. 
(a) The case file, as defined in this section, 

is available to the respondent in all enforce-

ment proceedings conducted under this sub-

part. 

(b) The case file of an enforcement pro-

ceeding consists of the following: 

(1) In cases commenced under § 190.206, the 

notice of amendment and the relevant proce-

dures; 

(2) In cases commenced under § 190.207, the 

notice of probable violation and the viola-

tion report; 

(3) In cases commenced under § 190.233, the 

corrective action order or notice of proposed 

corrective action order and the data report, 

if one is prepared; 

(4) In cases commenced under § 190.239, the 

notice of proposed safety order; 

(5) Any documents and other material sub-

mitted by the respondent in response to the 

enforcement action; 

(6) In cases involving a hearing, any mate-

rial submitted during and after the hearing 

as set forth in § 190.211; and 

(7) The Regional Director’s written evalua-

tion of response material submitted by the 

respondent and recommendation for final ac-

tion, if one is prepared. 

§ 190.210 Separation of functions. 

(a) General. An agency employee who 

assists in the investigation or prosecu-

tion of an enforcement case may not 

participate in the decision of that case 

or a factually related one, but may par-

ticipate as a witness or counsel at a 

hearing as set forth in this subpart. 

Likewise, an agency employee who pre-

pares a decision in an enforcement case 

may not have served in an investiga-

tive or prosecutorial capacity in that 

case or a factually related one. 

(b) Prohibition on ex parte communica-
tions. A party to an enforcement pro-

ceeding, including the respondent, its 

representative, or an agency employee 

having served in an investigative or 

prosecutorial capacity in the pro-

ceeding, may not communicate pri-

vately with the Associate Adminis-

trator, Presiding Official, or attorney 

drafting the recommended decision 

concerning information that is rel-

evant to the questions to be decided in 

the proceeding. A party may commu-

nicate with the Presiding Official re-

garding administrative or procedural 

issues, such as for scheduling a hear-

ing. 

[78 FR 58911, Sept. 25, 2013] 

EFFECTIVE DATE NOTE: At 78 FR 58911, 

Sept. 25, 2013, § 190.210 was added, effective 

Oct. 25, 2013. 

§ 190.211 Hearing. 

(a) A request for a hearing provided 

for in this part must be accompanied 

by a statement of the issues that the 

respondent intends to raise at the hear-

ing. The issues may relate to the alle-

gations in the notice, the proposed cor-

rective action (including a proposed 

amendment, a proposed compliance 

order, or a proposed hazardous facility 

order), or the proposed civil penalty 

amount. A respondent’s failure to 

specify an issue may result in waiver of 

the respondent’s right to raise that 

issue at the hearing. The respondent’s 

request must also indicate whether or 

not the respondent will be represented 

by counsel at the hearing. 

(b) A telephone hearing will be held if 

the amount of the proposed civil pen-

alty or the cost of the proposed correc-

tive action is less than $10,000, unless 

VerDate Mar<15>2010 13:34 Jan 02, 2014 Jkt 229220 PO 00000 Frm 00406 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\229220.XXX 229220eh
ie

rs
 o

n 
D

S
K

2V
P

T
V

N
1P

R
O

D
 w

ith
 C

F
R


		Superintendent of Documents
	2014-01-30T14:55:06-0500
	US GPO, Washington, DC 20401
	Superintendent of Documents
	GPO attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by GPO




